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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of DS Digital Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)in the manner so required and givea true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. QOur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance £
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAI) together :
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialty inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropnate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financia rting process.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that insufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standanne financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone fina X
& As
\ Sp
:;'?’\ A




represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s disqualified as on 31
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(fH) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

Company has not paid any remuneration to the directors of the company during the year
under audit. Therefore, requirement of reporting under section 197(16) of the Act are not

applicable.

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements;

it. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable 1osses;

tii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of 1ts knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; :
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
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us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

V. The company has not paid any dividend interim or otherwise during the year and
therefore the requirement of compliance of Sec 123 of the Act are not applicable.

2 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration numbes: 015260N

‘(%mj%ak
Safthak Madaan

Partner
Membership number: 547131
Place: New Delhi

Date: 18.05.2022
UDIN: 22547131 AJK(QAY 7659
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

()  Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A). The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B). The company is maintaining proper records showing particulars of intangible
assets

(b) The Company has carried out as part of its policy physical verification of Fixed
Assets subsequent to the year in respect of 4 schools. As informed, quantitative
reconciliation with the books will be carried out in the subsequent financial year on
completion of physical verification of all the schools.

In view of the above we are unable to comment upon the discrepancies, if any.

(¢) Company does not have any immovable property and therefore requirements of
title deeds as per para 3(1)( c) of the order are not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (2) The Company has carried out the Physical verification of the Inventory subsequent to

31.03.2022 and has applied roll back procedures to arrive at the Inventory on reporting
date. The procedure of conducting the physical verification has not been codified. No
discrepancies were noticed between the book record and physical count after applying
roll back procedures.
(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore,
in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financtal institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i1)(b) of the
Order is not applicable
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(i)

vi)

vii)

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, firms,
Limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year except it has transferred
its Learnflix business to Convergia Digital Education Private Limited (related party)
under slump sale for a total consideration of Rs 21.85 Crores against issue of 0.01% 2185

Cumulative Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1 Lakh/- each.

a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting

b)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has generally been regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax provident
Fund, Employees State insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues
in arrears as at 31.03.2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they

under clause 3(iii){a) of the Order is not applicable.
On the basis of information and explanation given to us in our opinion, the

investment made in the related party is not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

No Loans have been granted by the company during the year and hence reporting
under this clause regarding schedule of repayment of principle and payment of
interest is not applicable

No Loans have been granted by the company during the year and hence reporting
under this clause with regard to overdue amount is not applicable

No Loans have been granted by the company during the year and hence reporting
under this clause regarding extension or renewal of fresh loans is not applicable
In view of no loans and advances granted during the year, the requirement of
reporting regarding duration of loan under this clause is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
certified by the company loans and investments made are in compliance of section
185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits during the year.

Requirement of maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the company as the

company is not a manufacturing entity

In respect of statutory dues:

became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed
amounts as mentioned in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited as at

31.03.2022 except as follows :

S1 Name of | Nature of Dues ;| Amount | Forum where dispute is
No. | Statute Rs/lacs | pending.
1 Income Tax | Demand /s | 731.84 | Assesse has filed first appeal
Act 1961 143(3) read with before the National Faceless
sec 143(3A) and Appeal Centre
sec 143(3B) for
AY 2018-19
created by
National E
Assessment
centre

viil)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

ix) a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of the Loans except as detailed

below:
Nature of Name of Amount Whether No. of | Remarks,
horrowing, lender* not paid principal days if any
on due or delay
date interest
Loan From NBFC For | Siemens 1,73,21,743 | Principle 21 There is no unpaid
Hardware Financing Financial Rs 1,46,13,835 amount as on the
Services Interest reporting date
Private Rs 18,03,253
Limited
and HP
Financial
services
(India) Pvt
Ltd

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or any other lender




¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has applied the
term loans for the purposes for which the same had been obtained

d) The long term sources of funds comprising of share capital, reserves & surplus
(Negative) and long term loans are significantly less (due to grouping of Related party
loans as current borrowings pending agreements) than the long term application of funds
and intangible assets. Similarly the current ratio is also less than 2. The company is
suffering losses and hence the loan obtained from the related parties are partially utilised
for funding the losses. Thus it cannot be concluded that the company has obtained any short
term funds and utilized the same for long term purposes.

++ The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries, hence reporting under this clause regarding
utilisation of borrowings for meeting the obligations of subsidiary is not applicable

f) The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries, hence reporting under this clause regarding

raising of loans on the pledge of the investments made in subsidiaries is not applicable

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi} a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or

xi)

xiii)

Reported during the year

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

¢) The company being a private limited company (Subsidiary of Listed company), the
requirement of whistle blower mechanism is not applicable and hence not reported.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the reccrds of the Company, transactions with the related parties in respect of availment
of services are in the nature of specialized/customized services for which market prices are
not available. In absence of the same transactions are certified on arm’s length basis and
we have relied upon the same. In respect of other transactions the same are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of all transactions have
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Xiv)

Xvi)

xvii)

Xviii)

X1X)

been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the appiicable accounting
standards.

a) The company being a private limited company whose turnover does not exceed Rs
200 Crore and whose outstanding loans and advance from the banks and financial
institutions does not exceed Rs 100 crores, the requirement of system of Internal audit
is not applicable in terms of section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 13
of the companies (Accounts rule 2014). However the company has appointed the
external firm of chartered accountants for conducting internal audit, the scope and
coverage of the same needs to be strengthened.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company subsequent to the date of financial statements.

Accdrding to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered 1nto non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

b) The company has not conducted any Non banking financial or housing finance
activities during the year, Therefore the requirement of obtention of certificate of

registration is not applicable.

c) The company is not a core investment company as defined in the regulations made
by the RBI

d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year. However in the
immediately preceding financial year company incurred a cash loss of Rs 479 Lacs

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities (majority of them payable to related parties),
on the basis of pending merger and transfer of business with the parent company) other
information accompanying the financial statements and our know, f the Board of




Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX) Provisions of sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 regarding Corporate social
responsibility are not applicable to the company.

ForV. P. Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: G15260N

77?0 [}L
SarthakMadaan

Partner
Membership number: 547131

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18.05.2022

UDIN: 22547131AJKQAY7659




Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DS Digital Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAID’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

QOur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtatning an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. P. Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number;,015260N
)ago‘\mvak,

Sarthak Madazan

Partner

Membership number: 547131

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18.05.2022

UDIN: 22547131AJKQAY7659




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL200SPTC173250

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Amount in T}

- As at As at

Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,35,67,906 5,42,62.238
Intangible assets 4A 12,44,54,017 19,03,61,520
Right-of-use assets 4B 19,80,617 74,46,972
Other intangible assets under development ac - 1,53,24,234
Financial assets
. Investments 5B 21,85,00,000 -
- Trade receivables 5A 1,9 1 ,1 1 ,979 3,59,37,420
- Other Financial Assets 5C 1.86,027 20.26,544
Deferted tax assets (net) 27A 11.80.92.451 14,02,86 070
Other nop-current assets 7 1.19.73.547 8343454
Total non-current assets 52.78,66,544 45,3988 452
Current assets
Inventories 6 720,578 1,64.87 860
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 5A 2.42,66,826 4.26,55,944
- Cash and cash equivalents 5D 27,62.321 18,18.760
- Other Financial Assets 5C 10,83,950 29.85.154
Other current assets 7 2195294 1,12.97.657
Total current assets 3.10,28.968 7. 7.
Total assets 55,8895 512 52,92.33 827
Equity and labilities
Equity
Equity share capital 8 34.72.89.200 34.72.89,200
Other equity 9 (43.58.81,692) (46,33.21,043)
Total equity 8 492 1.843
Non-current Habilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10A 7164832 1,02,35481
- Trade pavables 11
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 52.83.099
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 5.46,95.986 7.32,89,206
- Other financial liabilities 11,37,758 38.16,701
Provisions 13 2341089 39.33.284
Total non current liabilities 6.53.39.665 9,65,57,771
Current liabilities
Financiatl habilities
- Borrowings 10B 56,06.29.585 50,62.,04.679
- Trade payables 1i
(a) Tota} outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 64,860 6.38.890
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1.32,78,344 2.56,61.857
- Other financial liabilities 12 58.55.949 1,31,99,939
Other current liabilities 14 17.56,021 2349843
Provisions 13 5.63.080 6.52.690
Total current liabilities 58.21.48.339 54.87.07.899
Total equity and liabilities 55,88,95.512 52,92,33.827
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chart Accountants

For and on beh; f.f of the Board of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited

- sl A S

Dineéh.ku{nar Jhunjhnuwala

Thot k-

S Madaan

Partner

Membership No.: 547131
Fr. No. : 015260N

Director
DIN : 00282988

R P VA

i

Place : New Delhi

Date : 18.05.22 Company Secretary
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DS PIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2048PTC173250
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in I)
Particulars Notes For the period ended For the period ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I Revenue from Operations 15 4,93,72,367 8,30,32,687
I Other Income 16 2,45,90,263 1,56,25,751
i Total Income (1+ID) 7,39,62,630 9,86,58,438
IV Expenses
Purchases of Stock in trade i7 741,254 9,64,760
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 18 15,54,342 34,74,642
Employee benefits expense 9 1,42,71,242 2,33,49,681
Finance cost 20 4,36,42,181 3,99,68,892
Other expenses 21 7,84,46,950 7,67,72,282
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 5,27,80,666 6,86,37,966
Total expenses 19,14,46,635 21,51,68,222
v Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (1IT - IV) (11,74,84,005) (11,65,09,785)
V1 Exceptional item 23 16,69,99.213 -
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (V- VD) 4,95,15,208 (11,65,09,785)
VIH Tax expense:
1) Current tax
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period/year - 17,582
- Pertaining to profit for the current period/year - -
2) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 2,21,63,000 {73,78,144)
Total tax expenses 2,21,63,060 (73,60,562)
IX Profit (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII) 2,73,52,207 (10,91,49,223)
X Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 24
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 1,§7,762 £,30,174
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (30,618) (33,845)
X1 Total Cemprehensive Income for the peried (IX + X)
(Comprising Profit (1.oss) and Other Comprehensive 2,74,39,351 {10,90,52,894)
Income for the period)
XI1 Earnings per eguity share: 25
(1) Basic 0.79 (3.14)
(2) Diluted 0.79 (3.14)
21

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For V. P, Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ot

Sarthak Madaan

Partner

Membership No.: 547131
Fr. No. : 015260N

Piace : New Deli
Date : 18.05.22

For and on beh;

of the Board of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited

I AS

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

Director
DIN : 00282988

Manish Kumar Goyal
Comnpany Secretary
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in T}

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 49,515,208 (116,509,785)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 52,790,666 68,637,966
Interest expense 43,642 18! 35968 892
Provision for Doubtful Debts 16,558,610 21,097,699
Amounts Written off/(Other Income) (266,001) (3,322.683)
Bad Debts written off 9,815,250 -
Fixed Assets written off - 1,667,131
Loss/(Gain) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations {Net) (1,061,13%) 1,091,838
Fair Value Gains on Financial Instruments (48,307) {33,433)
Empioyee Benefit Expenses 117,762
Interest on CCD of Convergia Digital (109,549) -
Other Adjustments - 236
Operating prefit before working capital changes 170,954,680 12,597,861
Movements in working capital :
{Decrease)/increase in trade payables {36,833,362) 5.221.305
{Decrease}/increase in provisions (1.681.805) {24.683)
(Decrease)increase in other current liabilities 184,541 (4.428.4358)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 389477 (28047927
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 15,767 282 3.474.642
(Decrease)increase in other financial liabilities (4,090,175) 1.358.096
(Increase) in Other financial Assets 9.262.298 (2,306.441)
Cash generated from operating activities 162,952,936 (12,155,60%)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) - -
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 162,932,936 (12,155.605)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including capital work in progress and capital advances 1,114,436 (31.000.387)
Proceed from sale of fixed assets 53,487,322 52,572
Purchase of investments {218,500.000) -
Ingerest on fnvestments 109,549 -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (163,788,693) (30,947.825)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from jong-term borrowings (3,070,649) (74.589.014)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 54,424,906 160490783
Repayment of Lease Liability (5,932,758) (4,098.125)
Interest paid {43.642.181) (38,954,689)
Net cash (used in)/flow from financing activities ) 1,779,318 42,848,954
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ ) 943 561 {(254.473)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 1,818 760 2.073,236
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,762,321 1,818,761
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 311,034 528,183
Balances with banks

- gn current account 2451287 1.290.577
Total cash and cash equivalents {note 16} 2,762,321 1,818,760

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For V. P. Jain & Asscciates
Chartered Accountants

/
1o ﬁ
Sarthak Madaan

Partner Ditectpr

Membership No.: 547131 DI
Fr. No. : 015260N

Place - New Delhi
Date : 18.05.22

For and on be

Chief Financial Officer

If of the Board of Directors of DS Digital Private Limed

\jw//&\/\

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjlmuwala
Durector
DIN : 00282938

ish Kumar Goyal




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UT2206DL20OSPTC173250

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

A. Equity share capital:

_Equity shares No. of shares Amount in 3
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of Rs. 10 each)
As at 1 April 20 3,47,28.920 34,72,89,200
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2021 3,47,28920 34,72,89,200
Increase/{decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 3.47,28.920 34,72.89.208
. Equity component of Non (anmountin)
Reserve & Surplus iative Optionally Convertible Total
Retained Earnings Prefergnce Share
As at 1 April 2020 (51,42,68,094) 16,00,60,000 {35,42,68,094)
Profit for the period (10,91,49,223) - {10,91,49,223)
Other comprehensive income for the petiod 95,329 - 06,329
Other Adjustments {54) - 54}
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (10,90,52,948) - {10,90,52.948)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 {62,33,21,043) 16,04,00,000 (46,33,21,843)
Profit for the period 2,73,52,207 - 2,73,52,207
Other comprehensive income for the year 87,144 - 87,144
Other Adjustment . - R
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2.74,39,351 - 2,74,39.351
Balance as at 31 March 2022 (59,58,81,691) 16,00,00,000 (43,58,81.691)

The accompanying notes are an integraf part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For V. P. fain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Aot

Sarthak Madaan

Partmer

Membership No.; 547131
Fr. No. : 015260N

Place : New Delhi
Date : 180522

For and on behalf of m;. Board of Directors of DS Digital Private L imited

) ~
D
#(a Bhalla

Chief Financial Officer

et S

Digesh Kumar fhunjhnuwata
Director
DIN : 00282988

Manish Kumar Goyal
Compary Secretary




REGD. OFFICE: A-27, 2" FLOOR, MOHAN CO-OPERATIVE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, NEW DELHI-110044

DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

2.2

2.3

Company Information

DS Digital Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated and
domiciled in India and has its registered office at A-27, 2nd Fioor, Mohan Co-Operative
Industrial Estate, New Delhi-110044, India.

The Company is a subsidiary of S Chand and Company Limited one of India’s largest and
oldest publishing and education service providers.

DS Digital product range comprises of Digital classroom, Student learning solution, tablet
solution, Hands on lab, Language lab, Teacher training and Learning centres.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with IND AS and Disclosures thereon
comply with requirements of IND AS, stipulations contained in Schedule- III (revised) as
applicable under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as amended form time to time, other pronouncement of ICAI,
provisions of the Companies Act and Rules and guidelines issued by SEBI as applicable.

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in revised Schedule - III to the
Companies Act, 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets

and liabilities.

Based on the nature of business and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 12
months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of current/ non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis except Income from pre-school educational activity are accounted for on
receipt basis, except for the foliowing material items that have been measured at fair value

as required by relevant Ind AS:

a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair values (as required
by the relevant Ind AS)

b. Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits and

c. Foreign commission expenses
Use of significant accounting estimates, judgement and assumptions

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described below, the
directors of the company are required to make judgements estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these

estimates. /
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

a.

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses

for the reporting period. :

In case of Property, plant and equipment, the charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The Useful life
taken to compute the depreciation is as per the Revised Schedule III of the

Companies Act 2013,

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which this entity operate (i.e. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the
national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the
amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of

changing facts and circumstances.

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible cutflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/ claim / litigations against the Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan / other long term benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation / other long term benefits are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation / other long term benefits is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

it
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
REGD. OFFICE: A-27, 2" FLOOR, MOHAN CO-OPERATIVE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, NEW DELHI-110044

2.4 Property, Plants and Equipment

These tangible assets are held for use in supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. These are recognized and carried under cost modei i.e. cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any which is taking to recognition criteria under
erstwhile GAAP.

a) For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 01, 2016 measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

b) Subsequent to transition date, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of
acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental to
acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and instailation including site restoration
up to the time when the asset is ready for intended use. Such Costs ailso include
Borrowing Cost if the recognition criteria are met.

¢) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

i Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land) is
provided on straight line over the useful life of the relevant assets net of
residual value whose life is in consonance with the life mentioned in Schedule
II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of computer or peripherals
where useful life is estimated six years based upon post experience in
providing hardware to schools.

ii. In the case of assets purchased, sold or discarded during the vyear,
depreciation on such assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of
such addition or as the case may be, upto the date on which such asset has
been sold or discarded.

iii, The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and in case of
any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

d) Components relevant to fixed assets, where significant, are separately depreciated on
SLM basis in terms of their rate specified in the schedule 1I of the Companies Act,

2013.

e) During sales of fixed assets any profit earned / loss sustained towards excess /
shortfall of sale value vis-a-vis carrying cost of assets is accounted for in statement of

profit & loss.

2.5 Intangible Assets

a) For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2016 measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its de?fned cost as of the transition

A e R e L R R e
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
REGD. OFFICE: A-27, 2" FLOOR, MOHAN CO-OPERATIVE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, NEW DELHI-110044

b) Subsequent to transition date, Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net
of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

c) Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

d) Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is

derecognised.

e) Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
live. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

f) In case the assets are internaily generated/upgraded then at capitalized development
cost subject to satisfaction of criteria of recognition (identify, control and future
economic benefit) laid down from clause 11 to 17 of IND AS 38.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost {including direct
cost and salary of employees) less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss. Research costs are recognized as expense in the period in which it

is incurred.

2.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that
an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate
of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying
value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is also done at each Reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist

or may have decreased.
W

2.7 Financial instruments ﬁ/ \7

1) Financial assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
REGD. OFFICE: A-27, 2" FLOOR, MOHAN CO-OPERATIVE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, NEW DELHI-110044

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair
value or as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent Measurement

For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:-

+ Financial Assets at fair value
¢ Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized
entirely in the statement of profit and loss, or recognized in other comprehensive

income.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost.

« Business Model Test: The objective of the company's business model is to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

« Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value
through OCI:-

» Business Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial assets.

« Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity
investments for which the entity has elected irrevocable option to present value

changes in OCI.
Impairment of financial assets:-

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit Io?es (ECL) model at an




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
REGD. OFFICE: A-27, 2" FLOOR, MOHAN CO-OPERATIVE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, NEW DELHI-110044

¢ 12 months expected credit losses, or
« Lifetime expected credit losses

Depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

However, for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognitien.

II) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held
for trading, or it is a derivative or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
Liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gain or losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and ioss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in

statement of profit and loss.

2.8 Revenue Recognition

Sales have been recognized with the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of
the goods, with the company losing effective control or the right to managerial involvement
thereon and the revenue (representing future economic benefit associated with the
transaction) including cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction are
measurable reliably and the recovery of the consideration is probable.

Income from Customised Interactive Content is recognised on completion of Initial training
at the school premises in case of Domestic schools and on the basis of installation of
software in International schools. Income from export customised interactive education

services is accounted on invoice raised.

Sales are measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Sales
recognized are net of Goods and Services Tax, Sales tax, service tax, VAT intermediary

sales, rebates and discount.

Incentives on exports related to operations as provided by government are recognized at
year end in books after due consideration of certainty of utilization / receipt of such

incentives.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest method.
Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in financial statements except for

cash f!ow»infaqaition. / \7; ]
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2.9 Employee Benefits

Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows:

a) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised
as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-employment benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fund and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s
defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the

related services.

ii) Defined benefit plan

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of
service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is
paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of

Gratuity Act 1972.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services

Actuarial gain / loss and other components of re-measurement of net defined benefit
liability (asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining components of costs are
accounted for in statement of profit & loss.

iii) Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present
value of the other long term employee benefits is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined
benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet
date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations. Actuarial
gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss as income or expense. Gains or losses on the curtailment or
settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when the curtailment or

settlement occurs,

Actuarial gain / loss and other components of re-measurement of net defined benefit
asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining components of costs are
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2.10 Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered

from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

Deferred tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax
assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing taxation laws.

2.11 Foreign commission expenses

Subject to an agreement the company has obligation to pay commission in foreign currency
in respect of export services on the basis of actual receipt from the schools.

2.12 Foreign Currency Translation

i) Functional currency
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s

functional currency.

ii} Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at rate of overseas currency ruling on
the date of transactions. Gain / Loss arising on account of rise or fall in overseas
currencies vis-a-vis functional currency between the date of transaction and that of

payment is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

ili) Subsequent Recognition
Monetary Assets in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the

exchange/rat% ing at the Reporting Date and the resultant gain or loss, is accounted

for in the'S &eéﬁ%l of Profit & Loss. y
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Non-Monetary items which are carried at historicai cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

iv) Impact of exchange fluctuation
Impact of exchange fluctuation is separately disclosed in notes to accounts.

2.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributed to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset till such time the
asset is ready for its intended use or saie.

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment
to the borrowing costs to the extent it does not exceed the difference between the Indian

Borrowing costs and the foreign borrowing cost.

A gualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized as expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term,
highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

2.16 Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost for the
purpose of valuation of Inventory is determined in accordance with the method prescribed
by the IND AS-2 on 'Valuation of Inventories'.
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2.17 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are

discounted to its present value as appropriate.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected
cost of terminating the contract.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possibie obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance sheet date.

2.18 Lease
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Premises. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

the contract involves the use of an identified asset,

the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through,
the period of the lease and

the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU)
asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) renewable every
year and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised and accordingly accounting treatment is done
in ROU and Lease Liabilities for such extension or termination of fease.

e

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the Ieaset}tus_ag initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently

measured at'cost l‘ﬁs& ccumulated depreciation and impairment losses, ., N
_{‘»’ : 8 } < / \/ M
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and usefuf life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The |lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise

an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.

Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease

and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease,.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

(Amount in )

Particulars Furniture & Fixtures Office Equipment Com‘puters & Plant & Equipment Total
Pexipherals
Cost
As at 1 April 2020 1,05,57,747 31,59,268 17,92,94,665 11,12,872 18,35,66,805
Additions - - 19,595,080 - 19,95,080
Disposalsiwritten off - - (3.43,98,778) - (3,43,98,778)
As a1 31 March 2021 1,05,57,747 31,59,268 14,68,90,967 11,12.872 15,11,63,107
Additions (refer footnote 6.2) 3,88,000 - 8,36,586 - 12,24,586
Disposals/written off - - (19,33,981) - (19.53,981)
As at 31 March 2022 1,09,45,747 31,59,268 14,57,73,572 11,12,872 15,04,33,712
Accumulsted depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 65,59,180 23.06,021 10,22,64,498 4,11,025 11,15,40,724
Charge for the Year 9,32,567 3,20,173 2,72,41,108 1,02,885 1,85,96,733
Deductions - - (3,26,78,839) - {3,26,78,839)
As at 31 March 2021 74,91,748 26,26,194 9,68,26,766 5,13,910 10,74,58,618
Charge for the Year 9.79,736 1,091,646 2,01,36,914 1,02,884 2,14,11,180
Deductions - - (14,46,244) (14,46,244)
Ag at 31 March 2022 84,71,484 28,17,840 11,55,17,436 6,16,793 12,74,23,554
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 30,56,000 533,074 5,00,64,201 598,962 5,42,62,237
As at 31 March 2022 24.74.263 341428 1,02,56,136 4,96.079 3,35,67,906
3.1 Refer Note 33¢b), 33(f) and 10A.1
4A. Intangibte assets - Others
(Amount in T)
Lesraflix Brand,
Particulars Mobile App. & Learning Content Computer Software Total
Content

Gross block
As at | April 2020 4,27,95,712 26,62,61,802 32,53,020 31,23,10,534
Purchases/internal development 1,09,44,108 1,98.26,722 6,28,832 3,13,99,662
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 5,37,39,820 28,60,88,524 38,81,852 34,37,10,196
Purchasesfinternal development (refer fooinote 44. 1,44.2. 4C 1) 90,006 1,03,46,827 - 1,04,36,827
Disposals {refér footnote 44.2 and Note 23} (5,38,29,820) (5,38,29,820)
As at 31 March 2022 - 19,64,35,351 38,81,852 30,03,17,203
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 7.24,042 11,45,58,088 23,9347 11,77,05,601
Amortization for the year 46,00,548 3,06,87,676 3,54,853 3,56,43,077
Deductions - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 53,24,589 14,52,75,764 17,48,313 15,33,48,677
Armortization for the year 13,41,048 2,76,14,543 2,14,555 2,91,80,146
Deductions {66,65,638} (66,65,638)
As at 31 March 2022 - 17,29.00,307 29,62,878 17,58,63,186
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 4,84,15,231 14,08,12,761 11,33,528 19,03,61,520
As at 31 March 2022 - 12,35,35,045 9,18,973 12,44,54,017

Addition in Leamflix Mobile Application & Content include shared management services of Rs Nil lacs (PY: Rs 20.94 Lacs}, and Expenses towards one time Performance Testing,

441
Automalion testing, Environmentaj testing of Rs Nil {PY: Rs 72 Lacs}

42 During the year an amount of Rs 106. 24 lacs capitalised tewards DS HCL Project has been transferred to Convergia Digital Education Private Limited on stump sale basis, as the

" ownership of the same vested with Safati Digital Education Pvt Lid.

4B. Right-of-use assets {Amount in )
Particulars AsatSistMarch 202z M3
{In respect of building taken on lease)
Gross Block balance at the beginning of the year 1,20,88,663 1,88,24,315
Addition 25.48,386 -
Deletion/Disposals 1,20.88,663 67,35,652
Gross Block balance at the end of the year (A} 25,48,386 1,20,88,663
Amortisation Reserve at the beginning of the year 46,41,691 47,66,940
Depreciation 2§,99,340 43,98,247
Deletion/Disposals (on account of vacancy of premises) 62,73,262 45,23,496
Amortisation Reserve at the end of the year (B) 567,769 46,41,691
Balance as at end of the year (A-B) 19,80,617 74,46,972

4C, Intangible assets under development
(Amount in )

1,53,24,235

As at 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2022

4C.2 \flana;,emem [ of vigw that classwise sepreg
impasrment on the basis of project and it is

f ? \ i no ', Sapa ent during the year.
4(.3 Details of Inmangibie assets under develupmen{ and 1l colPPlenon as on 31.03.2022 are certified b\ythyamgeme?

...... iy




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to financial sta as at 31 March 2022
5. Financial Assets
SA, Trade receivables
(Amount i ¥)
Asae As at
Pacticulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

5A.

5A2

SA.

1

ey

5B.

5B.]

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered goed 2,42,66,826 5,83,10,210
Receivable which have significant increase in credit visk (refer footnote JA.2) 1,76,40,496 3,65,02,989

Receivable credit impaired (refer foatmote 54.2) 3,51,14,374 2,31,89,487
1,70,21,696  11,80,02,686

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Unsecured, considered good - 1,56,54,267

Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk 37,588,504 23,92,097

Receivable credit impaired 2,98,53,587 2,13,62,959
3,36,42,392 3,94,09,322

Net Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 2,42,66,826 4,26,55,943

1,38,51,592 341,510,852
52,60,387 18,26,528
4,33,78,804 7,85,93,363

Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk
Receivable credit impaired

2,42,66,826 4,26,55,943

Current
1,95,11,979 3,59,37,420

Non-Current

Below fabie represents the trade receivables ageing from dae date of payment: {Amount in I}

Less than § 6 months te More than 3
Particulars . moanths 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 yesrs vears Total
As 8t 31 March 2022:
2) Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 2,00,17.885 42,02,441 - - - 2,42,20,327
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - 53,451,790  ,i2,14,508 - 1,65,56,358

- which are credit impaired - - 2,31,47,354 2,31,47,354
2,00,17,885 42,02,441 53,41,790 1,12,14,568 2,31,47,354 6,39,24,039

b) Disputed {rade receivables

- considered pood - - - - - -

. which have significant increase in credi risk - - . - - .

- which are credit impaired 16,499 30,000 2,69,000 8,15,138 1,19,67,020 1,30,97,657
16,499 30,000 2,69,000 8,15,138 1,19,67,020 1,30,97,657

Less: Expected Credit Loss - 29,745 3,156,873 34,47.286 2,98,53,987 3,36,42,892

2,0034,384 __ 42,02,69% 5198917 8582420 5260387 4,33,78,804

As at 31 March 2021:

) Undisputed trade receivables

- considered good 4,97,25,386 8345823 - - - 5,80,71,210
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - 2,150,027  1,18,54,215 - 3,34,24,242
- which are credit impaired - - - 97,98,287 97,598,287
4,97,25,386 83,45823 21570027 1,18,54.215 97,958,287  10,12,93,73%

b) Disputed trade receivables

- considered good 2,39,000 - - - - 2,39,000

- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - 30,78,747 - 30,78,747

- which are credit impaired - - - - 1,33,91,200 1,33,91,200
2,39,060 - - 30,78,747 1,33,91,200 1,67,08,947

1.ess: Expected Credit Loss 1,56,54,267 - 506,323 18,835,774 2,13,62,959 3,94,0%,322

3,43,10,120 $3,45823  2,10,63,704  1,30,47,188 18,26,528 7,85,93,363

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with ary other person.

In view of schools remaining closed due to Covid 9 pandemic confirmations required under $A 505 could not be procured. The same will be
obtained during the next financial year and status of ECL will be reviwed especially in respect of receivables with significant increase in credit
risk/ credit impaired.

Refer Note 33(b) and Note 33e regarding impact of extension of credit period due to covid 19.

Investments
{Amount in ¥}
As at As at

Particulars

e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Investments in naquoted debentures
Convergia Digital Education Private Lipr 21,85,00,000
(2,185 Cumulative Convertible Deb.

21,85,00,000 -
.

Refer Note 23 reg exceptional iter

N




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2022

5C. Other Financials Assets

{Amount in )

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Security deposits - Non Current 1,86,027 20,26,544
Security deposits - Current 10,83,950 29.85,154
Total other financial assets 12,69,977 50,11,698
Current 10,83,950 29.85,154
Non-Current 1,86,027 20,26,544
Unsecured, considered goed 12,69,977 50,11,698
Unsecured, considered doubtful - -
. 12,69,977 50,11,698
3D, Cash and cash equivalents
(Amount in T)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2621

Balances with banks
- In current accounts
Cash in hand
Fotal Cash and cash equivalents

6. Inventories

24,51,287 12,90,577
3,11,034 5,28,183
27,62,321 18,18,760

(Amount in I)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Stock-in-Trade
(lower of cost or net realisable value)
Total Inventories

6.1 Refer Note 33¢ regarding utilisation/ disposal of inventory.

7,20,578

1,64,87,860

7,20,578

1,64,87,860

6.2 1n view of the fact that inventory of Rs 7,42,400 is meant for servicing only, these have been treated as capital stores and

transferred to PPE.
6.3 Refer Note no 23 reg sale of learnflix business.
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Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2022

7. Other Assets

7A. Prepaid ¢xpenses

(Amount in )

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 16,330 1,830,912
Prepaid expenses (Current) 1,93,127 5,97,781
Total Prepaid expenses 209457 7,78,693
7B. Other assets
(Amount in I)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2621

Deposit with government authority (Refer Note 7B.1}
Advance Taxes, TDS & Other Receivable
- TDS (FY19-20)
- TDS (FY20-21)
- TDS (FY21-22)
- Export Incentive (Refer Note 7B. 1)
- GST Credit Recoverable
Advance to Suppliers
Advance to employees Imprest
Accrued Income (on Compulsory Convertible Debentures)

TFotal Other assets

Current
Non-Current

7B.1 Represents for FY 2016-17 (Rs. 20,37,779/-), FY 2018-19 (Rs. 23,49,820/-),
and FY 2021-22 (Rs 4,81,835) . In the opinion of management amoun
realisation certificate from the Bank and and has submitted the same to
and is hopeful that the amount will be realised in the subsequent years,

28,60,887 28,60,887
5,02,121 3,08,200
14,86,963 -
71,07,246 78,54,342
16,50,986 31,23,050
17,578 41,45,684
2,24.054 5,70,255
1,09,549 -
1,39,59,383 1,88,62,418
21,95,294 1,12,97,657
1,19,73,547 83,143,454

FY 2019-20 (Rs. 15,78,645), FY 2020-21 (Rs. 6,59,167)
sidered good for recovery as it has received the required
DGFT, Company is in active communication with the department

SRR
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8.

9.1

Share Capital
{Amonnt in T}
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Anthorised
3,70,00,000 (31 March 2021: 3,70,00,000} equity shares of Rs 10/- cach 37,00,00,000 37,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

34,72,89.200 34,72,89,200

3,47,28,920 (31 March 2021: 3,47,28,920} equity shares of Rs 10/- each
34,72,89,200 34,72,89,200

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning aad af the end of the reporting year

Equity shares Numbers Numbers

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 1 April 2020 3,47,28,820 3,47,28,920

Increase/{Decrease) during the period - -

As at 31 March 2021 3,47.28,920 3,47,28,920

Increase/(Dectease) during the peried - .
3,47,28,920 3,47,28,920

As 8t 31 March 2022

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares and one class of Preference shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitfed to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribuation of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders.

¢. Share capital held by holding company and their subsidiarics {Amount in T)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Rs) Rs)
S Chand And Company Limited 17,68,67.500 17,68,67,500
17,03,75,650 17,03,71,650

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

4. Details of sharebolders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Compsny: No. of shares held %4 of Shareholding

8 Chand And Company Limited 1,16,86,750 50.93%
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 1,70,37,165 49.06%
e. Details of shares held by pr ters in the Company
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Rs.) (Rs.)
No. of shares Y% of No, of shares . % change in
held Shareholding held % of Shareholding  sherebolding
$ Chand And Company Limited 1,76,86,750 50.93% 1,76,86,750 50.93% 0.00%
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited £,70,37,165 49.06% 1,70,37,163 49.06% 0.00%
Other Equity
{Amount in T)

Particulars As &t As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Retained earning

Balance as the Beginning of reporting period

Add: Surplus during the year

Add/tLess): Equity Component (1) Preference Shares
Add: Other Comprehensive income

AddA(Less): Other Adjustment

Balance as the end of reporting period (A)

Eqguity compogent of preference shares
Equity component (1 Preference shares)

Equity component {1l Preference shares)
Balance as the end of reporting period (B)

(62,33,21,043) (51,42,68,148)
2,73,52,207 (10,91,49,223)

87,144 96,329
- £54)
(59,58,81,692)  (62,33,21,043)

16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000

Total (A+B) (43,58,81,692) (46,33,21,043)

Due to Non exercise of the right of option for conversion by the kolder of Preference Shares 1 upto 315t march 2020, the Equity compenent of the Preference shares [ was
transferred to Retained Earnings on 31.03.2020. As per the original tenns of the said preference shares these have to be mandatorily redecmed upto 31.03.2620. The tenure of
redemption of these preference shares have been increased upto March 31, 2023 with the written consent of Safari Digital Initiatives Pvt Lid. ("Holder") as per section 48 of The
Companies Act, 2013. The management informs that after approval of the schemne of merger by the NCLT, these preference shares will stand cancelied. However the amount due

to Safari has been shown as Current Borrowings. 7.
M




I Preference shares

Company offered and issued 61,70,40¢ 1% optionaily convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares (“OCNCPS”) of Rs. 10 each to Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private
Limited (~Safari Digital” or the “Holder) as per special resolution passed on 24th March, 2015. The tenure of redemption of these preference shares has been increased upto

March 31, 2023 with the written consent of Safari Digital Inikiatives Pvt Lud. ("Holder") as pet section 48 of The Companies Act, 2013. Safari Digital is wholly owned subsidiary
of § Chand And Company Lirnited. There are no stipulations as to the [nterest on the same because as per proposed Composite Scheme of Arrang: t (*Scheme™) gst the

Companies which has been filed with the Nationat Company Law Tribunal {“NCLT"} for its approval, After de-merger of education business of the Company with and into S
Chand And Company Limited, the Company will be amatgamated with Safari Digital Education Initiatives, in pursuance of which the aforesaid OCNCPS held by Safari will stand
cancelled. Hence, no Inferest has been provided.

Convertibic Preference share shall have preferential right vis-a-vis Equity Share of the Company with tespect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or
repayment of capital.

Conventible Preference share shall have non- cumulative and non-participating in suplus fund.

Convertible Preference share shall have optionally convertible into equity shares of the Company after a period of 2 years from the date of issue at the opti
Education Initiatives Private Limited

Converlible Preference share Shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Act;

After 5 years, if not converted into Equity Shares then it shall be mandatorily re-deemed,

on of the Safari Digital

1%; optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares {Amount in T)
Particalars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As per last Balance Sheet 6,17,04,000 6,17,04,000
Changes during the period - .
Balance at end of year 6,17,04,000 6,17,04,000
The reconciliation of the number of shares cutstanding is set out below:
Asat As at
Particuls
articwlars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Preference shares at the beginning of the period 61,70,400 61,70,400
Add: Issae of Shares - R
Preference shares at the end of the period 61,70,400 61,70,400
The details of sharehokders holding more than 5% preference shares of the Company:
As at Asat
N { Sharehold
ame of Shareho'ders 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 61,70,400 61,70,400
{100 % shareholding)
61,70,400 61,70,400

11 Preference shares

Company offered and issued 1,60,00,000 1% optionally convértible non-cumulative Preference Shares (*OCNCPS™) of Rs.10 each as per special resolution 3 st August, 2016 to
S Chand And Company Limited.

Convertible Preference share shall have preferentiat right vis-a-vis Equity Share of the Company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or
repayment of capital.

Convenible Preference share shall have non- curzulative and non-participating in surplus fund.

Convertiblc Preference share shall have optionally convertible into equity shares of the Comipany after a period of 2 years from the date of issuc at the option of the D8 Digital
Private Limited.

Convertibie Preference share Shall caery voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2} of the Act;

After 5 years, if not converted into Equity Shares by the Holder then it shall be mandatorily re-deemed,

The aforesaid OCNPSwas issued by the company on September 19,2016 Accordingly, the period of § years has expired on 18th September, 202i.

The 2nd motion joini application in refation to proposed Composite Scheme of Armangement ("Scheme”) amongst the Company, Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited. Nirja
Publishets & Printers Private Limited, Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited ("Safari®) and § Chand and their respective creditors and shareholders filed with the
National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") in the month of July, 2020, The said application is pending for approval of NCLT. As pet the said Scheme, the education business of
the Company will be merged with and into S Chand and afler de-merger of education business of the Company with and into $ Chand, the Company with residual business wilt be
amalgamated with Safari. In pursuance of the Scheme, against the said QCNCPS held by S Chand, Safari will issue 2 (Two) preference shares of Rs, 10/-each fully paid-up of the
Safari for 17 (Scventeen) preference shares of Rs. 10/-each of the Company held by 5 Chand. This share swap ratic is integral part of the scheme. If the Company would have
redeemed these OCNCPS, the valuation, swap ratio and purpose of the scheme would have been impacted. Therefore, the Company did not redeem or convert the said OCNCPS.

The Scheme has beer apptoved by the shareholders of the Company and shareholders of $ Chard. In view of the same, the said OCNCPS$ are neither to be redeemed nor to be
converted into equity shares, Hawever, in case the Scheme is not approved by the NCLT, in that situation the said OCNCPS shali be required to be re-deemed mandatorily,
In ottder to comply the applicabie provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) and for better corporate governance, the Board of Directors of the Company by passing

resolution on April 07, 2022 decided to inctease the tenure of redemption of said OCNCPS upto March 31, 2023.
{Amount in 3}

1% optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares As st As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As per last Balance Sheet 16,00,00,060 16,00,00,000
Changes during the period - .
Balance at end of period 16,060,00,000 16,00,00,000
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2621
Preference shares at the beginning of the period 1,60,00,000 1,60,08,000
Add: Issue of Shares - -
Preference shares at the end of the period 1,60,00,600 1,60,00,000
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares of the Compsny:
Name of Shareholders Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,60.00,000 1,60,00,000

1,60,00,008

1,60,00,600




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2022

10.

10A.

10A.1
10A.2

10A.3

Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
{Amount in T)

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Secured Loans
Loan from Banks

Standard Chartered Bank (ECLGS) 46,40,000 -
Loan from Others
Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.1) 28,27,056 1,59,92,649
Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (ECLGS) 37,25,885 64,95,000
Hewlett Packard Financial Services (India) Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.1) 16,87,571 30,76,892
Total borrowings 1,48,80,512 2,55,64,541
Less : Current Maturities of long Term Borrowings 77,15,680 1,53,29,060
Non Current Borrowings after deduction of current maturities of long term borrowings 71,64,832 1,02,35,481
1,48,80,512 2,35,64,541

Secured Loan
Unsecured Loans

Secured against the movable fixed assets of the Company.
includes Interest Bearing Loan for Rs 5.36,00,000/- (31 March 21 - Rs.5,36,00,000/-) and interest accrued of Rs. 1,80,75,721/- (31 March 21 - Rs

1,31,23,364/-)
Optionally Convertible Loan Rs. 18,35.00,000/- (31 March 21 - Rs. 14,35,00,000/-) and interest accrued Rs.3,12,90,887/- (31 March 21 -

Rs.1,74,44,272/-}
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement a5 at 31 March 2022

10B. Current borrowings

(Amousnt in T)

. As st Asat
Particalars 31March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured:

L.oan from Banks
Standard Chartered Bank (Cash Credit, Refer Note 10B.1) - 2,86,70621
Loan from Others
Current Maturities of long Term Borrowings (refer note 1GA.1) 77,15,680 1,53,29,060
Unsecured :
Eoans from related parties
§ Chand and Company Limited (Refer Note 10B.2) 14,95,59 480 12,20,77,980
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited (Refer Note 10B.3) - 69,07,614
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited {Refer Note 10B.4) 1,72,69,408 3,42,78,621
Blackie & Son {Calcutia) Private Limited (refer note 10B.5) 1,04,04,109 95,69,148
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited {refer note 10B.6) 7,16,75,721 6,67,23,364
Chhaya Prakashant Limited (refer note 10B. T} 22,23,01,187 £6,09,44,272
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited (Pref, shares) (refer note 9.1) 6,17,04,000 §,17,04,000
Total 56,06,29,585 50,62,04,679
Secured 77,15,680 4,39,99,681
Unsecured 55,29,13,905 46,22,04,999

198. 1. Exclusive charge on entire current assets and movabte fixed assets (except assets which are exclusively charged under equipment financing),

10B.2. Optionally Converiible Loan amount Rs. 1 1,34,53,450/- (Mar21 Rs 9,69,53,450/) & Interest accrued Rs. 3,61,06,030/- (Mar2] Rs.2,51,24,530/)
10B.3. Optionally Convertible Loan amourt Rs. 50,00,000/- (Mar2l Rs 50,00,000/-) & Interest acerued Rs. 25, 10,300/- (Mar21 Rs.19,07,614/5

16B.4. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 2,50,00,000/- {Mar2l Rs 2,50,00,000/-} & Interest accrued Rs. 122,69, 408/- (Mar'21 Rs.92,78,621/}
[0B.5. Optienally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 65,00,000/- (Mar2t Rs 65,00,000/-} & Interest accrued Rs.39,04,E09/- (Mar21 Rs.30,69,148/-)

10B.6 Includes Interest Bearing Loan for Rs 5,36,00,000/ (31 March 21 - Rs.5,36,00,000/-) and interest accrued of Rs. 1,80,75,721/- (31 March 21 - Rs 1,31,23,364/-)
10B.7 Optionally Convertible 1.0an Rs. 18,35,00,000/- {31 March 21 - Rs. 14,35,00,000/-} and interest accrued Rs.3,12,90,887/- (31 March 21 - Rs.[,74,44,272/-)

11. Trade payables

(Amount in T)
As st As at
Particul
artienars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entemprises 64,860 59,231,989
Total cutstanding dues of related entities 5,92,83,461 7,00,99,575
Total outstanding ducs of crediters other than micro enterprises & small entexprises 26.91,369 2,88,50,488
Total Trade payables 6,80,39,690 10,48,73,052
Current 1,33,43,704 2,63,00,747
Non-Current 5,46,95,986 7.85,72,305
Below table represents the trade payables ageing: {Amount in ¥}
f.essthan 1
Particulars vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Asat 31 March 2022:
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro emterprises and small enterprises 64,360 - - - 64,360
Others 1.32.78.844 76,85 6565 96,18.360 37391961 6,79.74,830
1,33.43.704 76,835,665 96,18.360 3.73.91,961 6,80,39,690
b} Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - .
Others - - - - -
1,33.43,704 76,85,663 96,18,360 3,73,91.961 6,80.39.6%0
As at 31 March 2021;
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small emerprises 6,318,890 52,383,099 - - 59,21,989
Others 2.56,61.857 2,87,14.861 2,12.60918 2,33,13.427 9,89,51.063
263,000,747 3.39.97 960 2,12,60.918 2.33,13.427 10,48,73,052
b} Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and smail enterprises - - - -
Othets - - - - -
2,63,00,747 3,39,97.960 2.12,60.918 2.33.13.427 10,48.73,052

11.1 Information's regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such pa
Company has not provided interest as no supplier has demanded any inferest.

rties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2022

12

13

13.1

14

Other financial liabilities

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expenses Payables 29,04,351 58,50,541
Employee salary Payable 6,86,359 4,84,796
Other financial labilities {Employees Imprest) 13,46,438 26,91,987
Lease Liability (Current} 9,18,801 41,72,616
Lease Liability (Non-Current} 11,37,758 38,16,701
Total other finaacial liabilities 69,93,707 1,76,16,640
Current 58,55,949 1,31,99,839
Non current 11,37,758 38,16,701
Provisions
{(Amount ia ¥)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provision for retirement benefits

- Gratuity 18,96,909 28,35,188

- Leave Encashment 10,07,260 17,50,786
Total Provisions 29,04,169 45,85,974
Current 5,63,080 6,52,690

- Gratuity 3,714,116 3,86,722

- Leave Encashment 1,88,964 2,65,968
Non current 23,41,089 39,33,284

- Gratuity 15,22,793 24.48,466

- Leave Encashment 8,18,296 14,84,818
Refer Note no 26.
Other liabilities

{Amount in )
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Other payables:
Statutory dues 11,87,527 17,57,209
Advance from customers (as certified by management) 5,68,493 5,92,634
Total Other liabilities 17,586,021 23,49,843
Current 17,56,021 23,49,843

Non current

va

/7




PS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

15  Revenue From Operations

(Amount in )
. For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products
Finished goods 12,000 38,46,187
Sale of services (Refer Note 15.1) 4,86,82,358 7,85,27,333
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentive (Refer Note 7B.1) 6,78,008 6,59,167
Total revenue from operations 4,93,72,367 8,33,32,687
Detail of sale of services
Domestic
Customized Interactive Education Services (Refer Note 34e) 3,28,35,884 3,93,37472
Income From Pre School Educational Activity 50,48,530 18,79,823
Learnflix Ebooks 10,065,885 81,25,633
Mylestone Edge 1,48,602 -
Scrap Sale 6,780 -
Export
Customised Interactive Education Services 96,36,677 2.91,84,405
4,86,82,358 7.85,27,333

15.1 Includes Rs 4.17 Lacs [Previous Year: Rs. 9.31 Lacs} pertaining to the next financial year (refer accounting policy Note No2.).

16 Other Incomes

(Amount in T)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Foreign Exchange Rate Difference

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Interest on Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Provision reversed on account of Actual Bad Debt
Fair Value Gain on Security Deposit

Other Income

Total other income

16.1

10,61,139 .

- 2,50,257
1,09,549 -

2,23,25,040 93,51,099

3,16,172 5,29,175

7,78,363 54,95,219

2,45,90,263 1,56,25,751

In Pursuance of change in agreement of lease on account of vaccancy of tenented premises and chan,
Liability have been reworked as per IND AS 1 16 resulting in increase of income of Rs 5,81,066 (PY: Rs 10,29,299) .

ge in lease terms Right of Use and Lease




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

17

18

19

16.1

20

Purchase & implementation cost

(Amount in T)

. For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March2022 31 March 2021

Computer & Peripherals 2,28,550 9,64,760
E Books 3,78.,962 -
Mylestone Edge 1,33,742 -

Total Purchase & implementation cost 741,254 9,64,760

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{(Amount in I)
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Trade Itemns 1,64,87,860 1,99,62,502
(Less) Inventory transferred through sale of learnflix business (1,34,70,540) -
(Less) Inventory capitalised during the year {7,42,400) -
Inventories at the end of the year
Trade Items 7,20,578 1,64,87,860
{Increase)/decrease in inventories 15,54,342 34,74,642
Employee Benefits Expenses
{Amount in T}
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Salaries, Wages, Allowances (vefer footote 4C.1)
Provident Fund & ESI

Staff Welfare and Medical Insurance

Gratuity

Leave encashment

Bonus and Exgratia

Other Benefits to Staff

Total employee benefits expenses

8,31,353 2,02,98,227
6,01,333 15,61,158
5,205 71,049
4,81,290 737,876
87,350 65,242
3,73,210 7,40,881
38,91,561 18,75,248
1,42,71,242 2,53,49,681

Employee benefits Expense also includes Rs 27 Lacs on account of variable pay pertaining to earlier years.

Finance Cost

(Amount in 3)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest Expense
Interest on term loan
Interest on other loan
Interest on l.ease Liability (ROU)
Interest - Others
Bank Charges

24,11,031 36,610,281
4,05,80,471 3,52,07,204
4,26,734 10,14,203
1,92,604 49,236
31,340 36,968
4,36,42,181 3,99,68,892

~
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21 Other Expenses

(Amount in ¥)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Office Expense 5,159,492 5,37,050
Professional /Consultancy charges 1,04,23,349 1,90,25,117
Conveyance Expenses 1,599,937 2,44,288
Flectricity & Genset Expenses 6,57,444 9,27 418
Repair & Maintenance 22.80,272 48,09,716
Office Stationery 1,15,530 1,04,520
Telephone 3,22,838 3,08,243
Rent expenses 4,68,120 4,29.112
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 21.4) 3,50,000 3,50,000
Amount written off (Refer Note 21.1) 512,362 9,23,519
Provision on Doubtful Deposit (refer note 21.2) - 11,00,000
Provision against Advance - 1,49,018
Insurance Expenses 2,70,387 2,03.474
Advertisement and conference expenses 16,81,911 35,47,070
Travelling and boarding expenses 35,04,925 23,93,726
Freight, cartage and installation expenses 40,032 4,50,327
Marketing & Channel expenses 1,33,878 2,40.317
Business promotion 2,78,400 2,16,550
Rates & Taxes 50,134 1,060,990
Bad Debts Written Off 3,21,40,290 93,51,099
Provision for Expected Credit Loss (Refer Note 34e) 1,65,58,610 2,10,97,699
Fair Value Loss on Security Deposit 2,67.865 4,95,742
Fixed Assets written off - 16,67,131
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 236
Foreign Exchange Rate Difference - 10,91,838
Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note 21.3) 76,71,175 70,08,082
7,84,46,950 7.67,72,282

Total other expenses

31.1 Includes
Nil)

21.2 Provision for Security Deposit with UP VAT Authorities Rs Nil (PY: Rs 11 Lacs)
ac), courier charges Rs 0.39 lacs {PY: Rs. 1.64 lacs), computer expenses Rs 17.23 lacs

21.3 Includes security charges Rs, 6.92 lacs (PY: B.191

Export Incentive Receivable written off Rs Nil (PY: Rs 7.52 Lacs) and Tender Fee deposit written off Rs 1.06 Lacs (PY : Rs

(PY : Rs 12.41 lacs), shared management services is Rs 41.80 lacs (PY: Rs 31,05 lacs), educational services Rs 8.43 lacs (PY: 10.18

lacs), Learnflix App Maintenance charges of Rs 0.31 lacs (PY: Rs 4.03 lacs)

21.4 Payment to audifor

{Amount in ¥)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2621

As aunditor
For Audit
Reimbursement of expenses

3,50,000

3,50,000




22

23

24

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
{(Amount in ¥)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2622 31 March 2021
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 2,14,11,180 2,89,51,496
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,91,80,146 3,52,88,223
Amortisation of Right-of-use asset 21,99,340 43,98,247
5,27,90,666 6,86,37,966

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses

Exceptional Items {Amount in T)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
ar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gain on Slump Sale of Learnflix business 16,69,99,213 -

16,69,99,213 -

Total

The Company has transferred its Learnflix Student Solutions business on slump sale basis to Convergia Digitat Education Private Limited
(“Convergiz™), a fellow subsidiary of the Company, on July 01, 2021 at a business consideration Rs. 218.54 million paid by issuance of
Compulsory Convertible Debenture (“CCPs”) by Convergia to DS Digital and the fractional amount in cash.

Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OChH

The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shown below:
(Amount in T

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Re-measurement gains/(fosses) on defined benefit plans 1,17,762 130,174
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (30,618) (33,845)

87,144 96,329




25 [Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity hoiders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear ateributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all

dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations
(Amount in ¥)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31March2022 31 March 2021
Net Loss after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 2,73,52,207 (10,91,49,223)
Shareholders

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as depominator for 3,47,28,920 3,47,28,920
calcutating Basic EPS

Face Value per equity share 10 10
Basic Earnings per share 0.79 3.14)
Diluted Earnings per share .79 (3.14)

Note: The effect of weighted average potential Equity shares to be issued at the time of conversion of optionally convertible preference
shares is anti-dilutive in nature and hence not considered in calculation of dilutive eamnings per share.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
26 Defined benefit plans:

A, Gratuity
‘The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum paymends to vested employees at

retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employement, of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for ¢cach completed year of service. Vesting ocours on completion of
5 continuous years of service as per Indian law. However, no vesting condition applies in case of death.
The Company has provided for gratuity based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.
The following table sets out for the status of gratuity plan:
{Amount in I)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year

Service Cost ; -

Current service cost 3,537,361 5,80,244
Past service cost

28,35,189 26,60,936

Interest Cost §,23,92% £,57,632
Benefit payments directly by employer (4,171,404 {4,33,4503
Acquisition / Divestiture {8,84.403}
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Demographic . -
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Financial (55,804} 25,131
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Experience {61,958} {1,55,304)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of Current Year 18,96,909 28,35,189
14 Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
‘There is no plan assets
m Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Net defined benefit liability (asset) at prior year end 28,35,188 26,60,936
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 4,81,29% 137876
Total remeasurements included in OCT (1,17,762) (1,30,174)
Direct benefit payments by Employer (4,17,404} (4,33,450)
Acquisition / Divestiture (8,84,403) -
Net defined benefit liability (assct) - end of period 18,96,.909 28.35,188
v Expense recognised in the sta of profit or loss during the year
Service cost 3,57.36) 5,80,244
Net interesi cost 1,23.929 1,57.632
Total expense recognised in the employee benefit expense 4,81.290 737,876
v Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
Cumnlative OCI - (Income)/Loss, Beginning of Period {10,26,693} {8,96,519)
Total remeasurements included in OCI (E,17,762) (1,30,174)
Curnulative OCI - {Income)/Loss, End of Period (1144455} {10.26.6%3)
Vi Maturity profile of defined henefit oblization
Year | 3,74,116 3,17,683
Year 2 241,747 327458
Year3 2,21,652 3,19,346
Year 4 2,65,302 3,01,599
‘Year 5 [,79,704 286,371
Year 6 to 10 6,98,077 11,38,398

Significant Actuarie] Assumptions for the Totermination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below, have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions oecuring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant, The result of|
Sensitivity analysis is given below:

vii Quantitative senstivity snalysis for significant assumptions is as below

a) Iapact of change in discount rate
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Discount rate - 100 basis points 20,00,176 30,14,403

Discount rate + 100 basis points 18,04,246 26,75.427

Impact of change

Discount rate - 104 basis points {1,03,267) {1,79.214)

Discount rate + 100 basis points 92,663 1,59,762

b) Impact of change in salary

Present Value of obliation at the end of the period

Rate - 100 basis points 18,18,681 26.86,107

Rate + 100 basis points 19,77,991 29,94,638

Impact of change

Discousnt rate - 100 basis points 78,228 1,49,082

Discount rate + 100 basis points -81.082 -1,59,449
VIH  |Actuarial assumptions

Discount Rate 6.55% 6.15%

Future salary increase (First Year) 6.00% 6.00%

Future salary increase {Second Year Onwards) 8.00% 8.00%

Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 60 Years

Monality tates inclusive of provision for disabslity [ALM (2032-14; TALM (2012-14)

Withdraw] mte 15% 15%

The actuarial valuation of the present vaiuation of defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the

related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
9, the rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations {both furded and unfunded;) shall be determined by reference to market yields at the

S




B. Leave Encashment

in respect of leave encashment benefit, accnual is made on the basis of a year-end actuarial valuation in pursuance of the Company’s leave rules.
The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.
The following table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan:

(Amount in T)
Particulars 2024-22 2020-21
1 Change in present value of defined henefit obfigation during the year
Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year 17,50,786 20,79,8%5
Service Cost : -
Current service cost - .
{Gain)/Loss on curtailments - -
Interest Cost 80,068 1,26,17
Benefit payments directly by employer (3,77.590} {3,94.351)
Acquisition / Divestiture (4,53,285)
Actuarial (Gain} / Loss - Demographic - -
Actuarial (Gein) / Loss - Financial {31,152} 15,098
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Experience 38,433 (70,5733
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of Current Year 10,07,260 17.50,786
11 Change in fair value of plan assets during the year - -
There is no plan assets
11 Net asset/ (lizbility) recognised in the balance sheet
Net defined benefit liability {asset) at prior year end 17,50,786 17,50,786
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 87,350 65,242
Total remeasurements included in OCT - .
Direct benefit payments by Employer (3,77,5%0) {3,94,351)
Acquisition / Divestiture {4,53,286)
Net defined benefit liability {(asset) - end of period 16,67.260 14,21.677
v Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year
Service cost - -
Net interest cost 80,068 120,717
Immediate recognition of loss 7,281 (55,475)
‘Total expense recognised in the employee benefit expense 37,350 65,242
v Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year .
Cumulative OC!I - (Income)/Loss, Beginning of Period - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - -
Cumutative OCI - {Income}/Loss, End of Period -
Vi Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Year | 1,88,964 2,65,968
Year 2 1,28,325 225713
Year 3 1,17,645 2,06,971
Year 4 1,50,625 1,89.773
Year 5 91,460 2,12,940
Year 6to 10 3,395,252 647,005
Vil Quantitative senstivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below
a) Impact of change in discoant rate
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period
Discount rate - 100 basis points 10,63,984 18,58,419
Discount rate + 100 basis points 9,56,452 16,54,787
Impact of change
Discount rate - 100 basis points (56,724} (1,57,633)
Discourt rate + [00 basis points 50,808 95,999
b) Impact of change in salary
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period
Rate - 100 basis points 9,356,586 16,55,352
Rate + 100 basis points 10,62,733 ' 18,55,577
hinpact of change
Discount rate - 100 basis points 50,674 95,434
Discount rate + 100 basis points (55.473) (1,04,791)
VIH Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate 6.55% 6.15%
Future salary increase (For First Year) 6.00% 6.00%
Future salary increase (Second Year Onwards) 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability TALM (2022-14) 1ALM (2012-14)
Withdrawl rate 15% 15%




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Naotes fo financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

27A  Deferred tax assets (net)

27A

27A.2

Deferred tax is calculated, in full, on all temporary timing differences under the liability method based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

(Amount in T
For the year ended 31 March, 2022 meuntind)
Particulars As at 31st Marck, | Recognised in {  As at 315t March,
2021 | Profit&Loss | oC1 1 2022
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Right of Use Asset (2,73,58,255) 1,04,16,806 - (1,69.41,449)
(A) {2,73,58,255) 1,04,16,306 - {1,69.41,449)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets
Catried Forward Losses 1,86,01,571 {74,55,403) - 1,11,46,168
Unabsorbed Depreciation £3,57,51,420 (2,17,83,647) - 11,39,67,773
Provisions and Lease Liability 1,32,91,334 (33,40,75T) {30,618) 99,119,959
(B} 16,76,44,325 3,25.79 30,618 13,50,33.900
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) 14,02,86,070 (2,21.63.001) (30,618) 11.86,92,451
{Amonat in 3)
For the year ended 31 March, 2021
Particulars | Recopnised in [ As at 31st March,
As at 31 March, 2020 [ omr s ot i 2021
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (3.35,53,271) 61,95.045 - {2,73,58,255)
(A} (3,35,53,271) 61,95.015 - (2,73,58,255)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets
Carried Forward Losses 2,88.86,571 {1,02,85,000) - 1,86,01,571
Unabsorbed Depreciation £2,52,60,310 1,04,91,110 - 13,57,51.420
Provisions 1,23,48,160 9,717,019 {33,845) 1,32,91,334
{B) 16,64,95,042 11,83.128 33,845 16,76.44.325
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13,29.41,771 73.78,144 (33,845) 14.02.86.070

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on November 14, 2017 & April 06, 2018, approved the Composite Scheme of Amangement (“Scheme”} amongst Blackic & Sons (Calcutta)
Private Limited (“Company™), Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited (“Nirja”}, DS Digital Private Limited ("DS Digital"), Safari Digital Education nitiatives Private Limited
{"Safari") and $ Chand And Company Limited (S Chand") and their respective shareholders and creditors. The said Scheme had been filed with the Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, New Deihi Bench for its approval. The Scheme inter alia includes amalgamation of Blackie & Nirja with and into § Chand, demerger of the education business of DS Digital
& Safari with and into § Chand and amalgamation of residual busi {after demerper} of DS Digital with and into Safari. The last hearing before the NCLT was on May 09, 2022 but

to lack of time with the NCLT, the matter could not be heard. The next date of hearing beforc the NCLT is on May 26, 2022.

During the year ended 31.63.2022 Company has earned taxable profits of Rs 707 Lacs that have been sdjusted with the Unabsorbed depreciation of the previous years due to which no
provision for Income Tax under the normal provisions of the Act and w/s 115/8 has been made, although DTA Expense of Rs 184 Lacs has been charged in Profit and Loss account on

account of the adjustment as stated above.
{Amount in T)

278 Tax Expenses
i For the year eaded 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
(a) Income Tax charged or credited to Statement of profit and Loss during the year
In Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period/year - 17,582
- Pertaining to profit for the current period/year - -
Deferred Tax Credit 2,21,63,000 (73,78,144)
In Other Compreheasive Income
Deferred Tax Credit 30,618 33,845
Total 2,21,93,618 (73.26,717)
(b} Reconciliation of tax expenses
Accounting Loss before tax 4,95,15,208 (1£,65,09,785)
Applicable Tax Rate 26.00% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense 1,28,73,954 (3,02,92,544)
Tax effect of :
Tax impact on lapsed B/F Losses 69,14,593 1,88,49,201
Tax impact on Raise Centre Losses (rot zccounted for} others 122,467 30,68,129
Tax Impact on adjustiets in Income Tax Computation 29.33,076 10,48,498
Tax Lnpact on others (6,950,471}
TaxE r ised in Stat: t of Profit and Loss 22193618 {73.26.717)
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Notes to financial statemnent for the year eaded 31 March 2022
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29.1
29.2

kY
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Contingent Liabilities

{Amoentin©)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis
1. VAT claim by U. P. VAT Act. 27,50,000 27,50,000
2. Demand for AY 2018-19 under IT Act, 1961 7,3L84. 800 :
7.59.34,800 - 27,50,000

Compay has paid Rs 11 Lakhs for levy of penaity LI/S 54(1) of U P. VAT Act vide Appelate order the order has been set aside for re-adjudication.
A demand of Rs 7,31,84,804 has been created for AY 2018-19 by the National E Assessment Centre in respect of vadous additions mae in the order framed under section 143(3} read with section {43(3A)
and 143(3B) of the Income Tax Act 1961, Agsesses has filed an appeat before the Nationa? Faceless Appeal Centre which is pending. Assesse is hopeful that the addition would be deleted and ultimately there

would not be any tax liability.

Unkedged foreign ccm £IPOSTIE ; -

Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade receivables: - {Amount in 2} {Amount in T)

Qatari Rival 46,84.500 QAR 2,25000 | 20.82 per QAR 35,33,250| QAR 1,75,000 20717 per QAR

UAE Dirhams 41,72,211| AED 2,02,142 | 20.64/- per AED 3.55,57.690] AED 17,76,996 | 20.01/- per AED

Omani Rial 14,52,127] OMR 7,596 £9L. L7 per OMR

US Dollars 477,750 USD 6 500 T3.50/- pes USD
Total 88,56,711 4,10,20,818,

Financial [nstruments - Accounting ¢lassiications and fair value measurements

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instroment could be exchanged in a carrent transaction berween willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair vaiues:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabifitics, and other financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due o the
short term maturities of these instruments.

based on p such as interest rates and individaal credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation,

Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the comy
allowances are taken 10 the account for the expected losses of these receivables,

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fi nancial instruments by valuation technique:

Level1 Quoted prives {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or Habilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 01 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Levei 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 1 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
(Amount in T}
Carrying amount  Fair Value Eevel
As at 3151 Mar 2022 IR
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 2,42,66,826
Cash and Bank balances 27,62,321
Loans 12,69977
Total 2,82.99:.124 -
Financial tiabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings 56,77,94,417
Trade pavables 1,33,43,704
Other financial liabilities 65,93,707
Total 58,81 31,828 -
A
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34 Dhsclosure related te key fingncial ratios:

Additionat information

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Amount in T) (Amount in ¥)

A Export of goods /Services 96,36,677 2,91,84 405

96,36,677 2,91,84.403

A Traveling 1,55278 -
B. Cloud Services 742,749 -

898,027 -
COVID Disclosures

Slowdown in economic activity including [ndia. This event has significantly effected economic activities and the impact of

a) The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally has caused 2
has further caused Statewise Lockdowns from 17th April 2021 which was

coronavirus on our business will depend on future developments that cannot be refiably predicted. The Second wave in April 202%
opened in 2 phased manner, with proper protocols as per MEA guidelines.

b) In: developing the ptions relating (o possible uncertaintics in the business conditions because of the pandemic, the Company, as on the date of approval of these financials results have used variable
information as available and idered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the carrying amount of its assets L.e. assessing counterparty credit risk in case of financiat assets (comprising cash
and cash equivalents and bank deposits) and subsequent recoveries, past trends, credit risks profite of customens in case of tade receivables and advances to vendors. The company expects to recover the
carrying amount of the assets . The Company while assessing Right 1o Use Asset, Intangible Assets and Assets deployed at Schools , has considered past trend, fihare business projections, performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions wsed and hased on current ¢Stimates expects the cammying amount of these assess will be recavered and does not foresee either significant down-sizing in the operations or

any changes o lease terms.
) As at the balance sheet dat¢, the Company has evaluated the impact of COVID 19 on its financial results The impact of COVID 19 may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
The has & the impact of the closure of all educational instituzions during the past and schools which form the main customer base for the Company. The Managzement of the

ducational institutions have been opened for the next sessions for offline
management is of the view that there is no reason to impair the

Company has assessed that the Revenue from the Interactive Leamning Solutions and Pre School will grow in subseq) periods as
mede. The Inventories held will be utifised/supplied in the forth coming periods as new customes are signed and old ones renewed. Hence the
investment made in creation of the content {i ible assets} and i res held.

d) There have been ne material changes in the contzols or processes followed in the financial statements ¢losing process of the company. The company will continue to monitor any future changes to the business
and financial stai¢roents due to COVID-19

&) The managemsnit, based on its current ard firture business plans, afier congidering COVID 19 impagt,

near future inclading repayment of the debts taken firom banks / non banking financial companies and their celated covenants, is dependent upon timely
raiseed Invoices and d for C ised I ive Content Inceme of Rs 21,89 lakhs {Gll 31-03-22) due to deffermengwajver given to the schools which were ¢losed, The same: will be accounted on as

and when schools open and confinm payment for the same. Due to coatitued Exsension of credit pericd given to schoals for  further peiod of 90 days given to the trade seceivahles an account of Covid t9
Pandemic the provision for expected credit loss s made at reduced figure of Rs 165 lacs instead of Rs 180 Lacs .The management has assessed that it wilk be able to realize the collecticns albiet with some
delays despite COVID 19 challenges else would be able to arrange adequate funding from the Hoiding Comnpany , if required, o ensure continuity of eperations.

has assessed that the Company’s ability to meet its contractual obligations and labilities thay fall due in
lization of deblors collections The has not

£} The Company as part of its policy performs physical verification of Fixed Assets gvery year. For the financial year ending March 31, 2022, on account of COVED-19 restrictions on Schools reopening, the
managzment could not perform physical verification of fixed assets to the date of approval of these fi al The g has, therefore, relied upon the Fixed Assets reflected in i% books of
accounts. The management intends 10 complete the physical verification process in the subsequent year and doesn’t expect any significant impact which could arise on completion of this process

Key finarcisi ratios Numerator Denominator Current period Previous period % Variance Reason for variance
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.05 0.14 -61.13% Transfer of Corrent assets for Rs 214 Lacs and Current Liabikities
242 Lacs under Business Transfer. Decrease in Trade
Receivables (Current) from 42 7Lacs to 147 Lacs.
b. Debt-equity ratio Total debi Shareholder's 541 -4.45 44.00% Due 0 increase in debts and interest compounding
¢. Debt service coverage  Eamings available for Debt service** 0.22 -0.00 -21193.9%9% Profit on Transfer of Learnflicx Business under Business Transfer
Tatic debt service®
d. Return on equity Net profits after taxes -  Average -0.27 -1.77 -84.94% Profit on Transfer of Learnflicx Busincss under Business Transfer
. Inventory tumover Cost of goods scld or Average 0.27 024 9.53%
Ratio sales inveniory
f, Trade receivables Net credit sales Averags accounts 1.46 134 -20.98%
turnover ratio receivable
g- Trade payables Net credit putchases Average rade 0.04 002 144.10% Transfer of Trade Payable of 236 Lacs with Leamflix business
turmover ratio payables transfer
h. Net capital turnover ~ Net sales Working capital -0.09 -0.15 -41.14% Decrease in Net Sales more than Decrease in working capital
ratio
i. Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales 0.56 -1.33 -142.39% Profit on Transfer of Learnflicx Business under Business Transfer
j Return on capital Earning before interest Capital 0.09 -0.20 -144.71% Profit on Transfer of Learnfliex Business under Business Transfes
employed and taxes employed***

& Relum on invesment # {MV{T1) - MV(¥0) - {MV({TO0} + Sum
Sum {C{0}} Wi * Cli




35 Additional Disclosures
The company has utilised the borrewings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purposes for which it was taken.

Additions? Regulatery Information:

The company does not own any immovable property on the date of balance sheet and therefore the requitement of disclosures regarding the title deed is not applicable.

The company does not own investment property on the date on the date of balance sheet and therefore the requirement of disclosures regarding the fair value is not appiicable.

“The company has not revalued its PPE(imcluding ROU asset) and ils intangible assets during the year and hence disclosure regarding basis of revaluation is a0t appiicable.

The company has not granted any Joans or advances in the natare of foans 1o prometers.directors, kmp and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person which is either repayable
on demand or without specifying anyterms or pericd of demand and therefore requirement of disclosure of such loa/ advance.

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the ‘benait transactions {prohibition) act ,1988 (45 of 1988)and the rules made thereunder.
Company has not beea declared as wilfull defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

The company has not done any transaction with struck off companies during the year and therefare no balance whether payable! receivable finvestment in securitics or shares of the company held by
such struck off companies or any other outstandings exist on the balance sheet date.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the act read with companics (restriction on number of fayers) rules 2017

Company has not 2pplied ay accounting policy retrospectively or has made a restatement of items in FS or has reclassified items in the FS.

No funds {which are material either individuzily ot in the aggregate) have been advanced or Joaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any uther sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or i any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwisc, that the Intermediary shall, whetkher,
directly or indirectly lend or iavest in other persons or entities identified in any masmer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Cozpany (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; .
No funds (which are material either individually or in the apgregate) have: been received by the Company from any person o1 entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, wi fether, directly or indirectiy, lend or invest in ather persons ot entities identified in sy manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimae Beneficiaries™) of provide any guarantee, segurity or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

36  Previous Year Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

For V. P. Jain & Associates For and on .of the Board of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited
Chartered Accountarts /7 w\/j
4%3}\ j’h o k‘/

Madaan Dinesh'¥timar Jhunjhmawala
Partner Drirectos
Membership No.: 547131 DIN : 60282988
Fr. No. : G15260N
Place : New Delhi ish Kumar Goyal

Company Secretary

Date : 18.05.22




